
Tohono O'odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

April 13, 2023 

TOCC Boardroom, Gewkdag Ma:cidag Ki: 

S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ

In Person & Virtual Meeting 

Addendums are attached to the end of this document



   Tohono O’odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ  
   Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
   April 13, 2023, 1:00 p.m. 
   TOCC Boardroom, Ma:cidag Gewkdag Ki:, S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ 

      In Person and Virtual Meeting – Phone, Internet via Zoom 

AGENDA 

General Matters Page No. 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
2. Invocation
3. Review and Approval of Agenda
4. Announcements and Upcoming Events
5. Minutes from February 09, 2023 BOT Regular Meeting 02 
6. Minutes from March 09, 2023 BOT Regular Meeting 09 
7. Call to the Audience
8. Coronavirus Update

New Business 

1. TOCC Board of Trustees Annual Election of Officers
2. February 2023 Financials – Dean of Finance
3. Human Resources Report – HR Generalist
4. Draft TOCC Facility Use Policy – President, Chief of Operations 14 

• Request for Facility Use Form
5. TOCC Faculty and Adjunct Job Description Modification 19 
6. TOCC Facilities O’odham Names – TOCC Apprenticeship Building – Apprenticeship Director 20 
7. Proposed TOCC Coronavirus Policy Protocol – President 21 

Reports – by Division and Division Components 

1. President, Human Resources, Operations, O’odham Language Center, Apprenticeship Program 24 
2. Education Division, O’ohana Ki:, Tohono O’odham Studies, NSF STEM 30 
3. Student Services Division 35 
4. Sustainability, Information Technology, Office of Institutional Effectiveness,

Workforce and Community Development 40 
5. Student Life, Residence Life, Athletics & Wellness

General Matters 

9. Executive Session

Adjournment 

1



Tohono O’odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

February 09, 2023, 9:00 a.m. 
9:00 a.m. 

TOCC Boardroom, Ma:cidag Gewkdag Ki:, S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ 
In Person / Virtual Meeting 

GENERAL MATTERS 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call

The Board of Trustees Regular Meeting was Called to Order at 9:08 a.m. by Chairperson Dr.
Ofelia Zepeda.

Present Excused 
Absence 

Unexcused 
Absence 

Attendance 
Time 

Board of Trustees 

X 9:08 a.m. Dr. Ofelia Zepeda, Chairperson 
X 9:08 a.m. Bernard Siquieros, Vice-Chairperson 
X 9:08 a.m. Jonas Robles, Elder Member 
X 9:08 a.m. Mary Bliss, Member 

Administration Members 
X 9:08 a.m. Dr. Paul Robertson, President 
X 9:08 a.m. Dr. Mario Montes-Helu, Dean for Sustainability 
X 9:08 a.m. Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 
X 9:08 a.m. Dr. Laura Sujo-Montes, Dean of Academics 

X 9:08 a.m. Yolanda Pacheco, Dean of Student Services 
Recorder 

X 9:08 a.m. Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the President 
Guests 

X 9:08 a.m. Sonya Juan, Director of Human Resources 
X 9:08 a.m. Katherine Gader, Student Success Coordinator 
X 9:08 a.m. Sylvia Hendricks, Director of Student Life 
X 9:08 a.m. LeAnn Miles, Office Coordinaor – Sustainability 
X 9:08 a.m. Mickie Widener, Human Resources Generalist 
X 9:08 a.m. Kristin Eberhardt, Project Director Title III Grant 
X 9:08 a.m. Neal Wade, Business Instructor 
X 9:08 a.m. Anselmo Ramon, Chair of Workforce & Community Development 
X 9:08 a.m. Iris Nez, Bookstore Supervisor 
X 9:08 a.m. Juan Cervantes, Director of Land Grant Office of Sustainability 
X 9:08 a.m. June Starr, Technical Support Manager 
X 9:08 a.m. Cassandra Scott, Phoenix Center Director 
X 9:08 a.m. Christina Coffman, Academic Advisor Coordinator 
X 9:08 a.m. Drew Harris, Athletic & Wellness Manager 
X 9:08 a.m. Jay (Johnny) Juan, Chief of Operations 
X 9:08 a.m. J. Adrian Quijada, Biodiversity & Research Specialist
X 9:08 a.m. Carmella A. Pablo, Principal Accountant 

2



X   9:08 a.m. Deshon Miguel, Senior Systems Administrator 
X   9:08 a.m. Earl Anhill, Electrical Instructor – Apprentice Program 
X   9:08 a.m. Frances Benavidez, Director of Tohono O’odham Studies 
X   9:08 a.m. Ingrid Segundo, Director of Sponsored Projects 
X   9:08 a.m. Jai Juan, Recruiter 
X   9:08 a.m. Pauline Nasewytewa, Workforce & Community Development 

Advisor 
X   9:08 a.m. Rosemarie Ramon, Administrative Assistant 
X   9:08 a.m. Liz (Ofelia) Zepeda, Library Director 
X   9:08 a.m. Martha Lee, Consultant 
X   9:08 a.m. Tim Foster, IT Instructor 
X   9:08 a.m. Valentine Lee, Lead Security 
X   9:08 a.m. Camillus Lopez, Senior Cultural Mentor 
X   9:08 a.m. Sharon Parker, Adjunct Faculty 
X   9:08 a.m. Alberta Espinoza, Counselor 
X   9:08 a.m. Ben Jose, Research Assistant 
     

 

 

2. Invocation 

The invocation was given by Jonas Robles. 
 

3. Review and Approval of Agenda 

The BOT regular meeting agenda was reviewed and an Addendum to the Human Resources 
report was provided to the Board of Trustees. 

 
A motion was made to approve the meeting agenda as presented. 

 
MOTION: Motion by Jonas Robles, Seconded by Mary Bliss, to approve the meeting agenda as 
presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT. 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

Executive Summary: TOCC BOT acted on the following at the February 09, 2023 regular meeting: 
• Approved the January 12, 2023 TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes as presented. 
• Approved to discontinue the use of the Health Screening Kiosk at TOCC campuses effective February 

28, 2023. 
• Accepted the November 2022 & December 2022 Financial Reports as presented. 
• Accepted the Human Resources Report for January 2023 as presented. 
• Approved the additional Student Services Specialist I position as presented. 
• Approved having two Tohono O’odham Agriculture & Natural Resources (TOANR) Assistant positions 

for the Extension program as presented. 

3



4. Announcements 

Treena Parvello was interviewed by the HRDC last month and is to be considered by the TOLC on 
February 13, 2023 for appointment to the TOCC Board of Trustees. 
 
TOCC’s parade entry won 3rd Place in the Schools Category. 
 
The TOCC All Staff meeting scheduled for Friday February 10, 2023 has been cancelled. 
 
An I-wagi (Wild Spinach) Harvest has been planned for today – Thursday February 09, 2023 at 
1:30 p.m. Transportation will be available from S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ at 1:00 p.m. 
Participants will meet at the Tohono Plaza, Sells, Arizona and travel to the harvest site. 
 
Per the HRDC request for an update from TOCC, BOT members agreed by consensus to meet 
virtually with the HRDC on Thursday March 30, 2023. 
 
TOCC’s Agriculture Program partnered with the San Xavier Co-op Farm, Ajo Center for 
Sustainable Agriculture and the Pancho Memorial Farm to enter a float in the O’odham Wapkial 
Ha-Taṣ parade. The entry won 1st place in the Groups Category. 

 
Luci Tapahonso will read at the University of Arizona tonight at 7:00 p.m. in the Harvill Building, 
Room 150. The event is open to the public. 
 
TOCC’s exhibit booth at the rodeo complex accommodated the Recruiter and the Division for 
Sustainability personnel. An NTIA survey was conducted and the participants were entered into 
a raffle. Jason Celestine was the winner of a Chromebook device. 

 

5. Minutes from the January 12, 2023 regular meeting of the TOCC Board of Trustees. 

Minutes from the January 12, 2023 BOT regular meeting were reviewed. 
 
A motion was made to approve the January 12, 2023 TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting 
minutes as presented. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles, to approve the January 12, 2023 TOCC 
Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

6. Call to the Audience – None 
 

7. Coronavirus Update – Dr. Paul Robertson, President 

There is a recommendation to eliminate the health screening requirement at S-cuk Du’ag 
Maṣcamakuḍ and Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ for students and staff and faculty. Students, Staff and 

4



Visitors will continue to be required to wear masks on campus. Additional signage will be installed to 
advise the public to check in to provide proof of vaccination. 
 
The rapid tests are available for those that do not have vaccination documentation upon arrival to 
TOCC campuses. For recent events held at TOCC, a letter to confirm vaccinations for groups has 
been sent to the college prior to scheduled visits. 

A motion was made to discontinue the use of the Health Screening Kiosk at TOCC campuses 
effective February 28, 2023.[PR1] 
 

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles, to discontinue the use of the Health 
Screening Kiosk at TOCC campuses effective February 28, 2023. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. November 2022 Financials – Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 

Dean Miguel reviewed the November 2022 Financial Report. 

 

2. December 2022 Financials – Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 

Dean Miguel reviewed the December 2022 Financial Report. 

A motion was made to accept the November 2022 and December 2022 Financial Reports as 
presented. 
   

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Bernard Siquieros, to accept the November 2022 
and December 2022 Financial Reports for as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

3. KLA 2022 Letter of Engagement – Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 

Dean Miguel reviewed the KLA 2022 Letter of Engagement. The document was included in the 
February 2023 board packet for informational purposes. 

 

4. Human Resources Report – Sonya Juan, Human Resources Director 

Director Juan submitted an Addendum and reviewed the January 2023 Resource List which 
included the Employment Vacancy Activity Log. 

5



Introductions were exchanged between the BOT and the following new employees in 
attendance: 

• Katherine Gader, Student Success Coordinator 
• Dr. Laura Sujo-Montes, Academic Dean 

A motion was made to accept the Human Resources Report for January 2023 as presented. 
   

MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles, to accept the Human Resources 
Report for January 2023 as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

  

5. Draft Policy Recommendation for TOCC Facility Use – Jay (Johnny) Juan, Chief of Operations 

TOCC is experiencing numerous requests for facility use by employees and community groups. A 
policy to regulate, manage and support the use of facilities is needed. 
 
The use of TOCC’s technological equipment by non-TOCC groups was unclear. A form can be 
developed as part of the policy to outline availability and request technology options. 
 
To address the points raised, the Facility Use Policy was tabled by consensus of the BOT. 

 

6. Student Services Division Position Request – Dr. Paul Robertson, President 
• Student Support Specialist I 

With the increase in enrollment, the Admissions staff has taken on additional duties, worked 
extra hours during at peak times and requested basic student services have been delayed. An 
additional Student Support Specialist I will allow the Student Support Specialist II to perform 
needed job duties which the Registrar has taken on. 

A motion was made to approve the additional Student Support Specialist I position as 
presented. 

   
MOTION: Motion by Mary Bliss, Seconded by Jonas Robles, to approve the additional Student 
Support Specialist I position as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

 
7. Division for Sustainability Position Request – Dr. Mario Montes-Helu, Dean for Sustainability 

• Tohono O’odham Agriculture & Natural Resources (TOANR) Assistant 

Extension activities have increased at the Student Learning Farm (SLF) and the new oidag at 
Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ. A high turnover of student interns working at the SLF exists. There is a need 
for reliable support for the SLF and the Extension activities to complete the scope of work associated 
with the NIFA Extension grant. 

6



A motion was made to approve having two Tohono O’odham Agriculture & Natural Resources 
(TOANR) Assistant positions for the Extension program as presented. 

   
MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Mary Bliss, to approve having two Tohono 
O’odham Agriculture & Natural Resources (TOANR) Assistant positions for the Extension program 
as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 
 

8. TOCC Micro-Credentials Presentation – Dr. Mario Montes-Helu, Dean for Sustainability 

Many community colleges offer micro-credential courses. Specific disciplines can be identified 
and measured within a micro-credential program. The most common is enhancing skills for 
employment. Micro-credentials offer a specialization and set criteria for qualifications in 
minimal time. Micro-credentials are also stackable and can apply to several disciplines. 

 
9. 2022 TOCC Annual Report – Martha Lee, Consultant 

The 2022 TOCC Annual Report was included in the February 2023 board packet. The document 
was reviewed and several changes were directed by the BOT. It was urged that the report be 
completed and available for the HRDC meeting on March 30, 2023. 

 
10. Data and Retreat PPT (PowerPoint) with Discussion – Dr. Paul Robertson, President 

President Robertson shared a presentation entitled: TOCC College-wide and Tohono O’odham 
Student Presentation. During the recent BOT Mini Retreat, Tohono O’odham student data was 
shared. The information is further detailed for the board to review. 

Comments, suggestions and further data analysis was discussed. Information about the college 
should be enhanced in the metropolitan areas near the reservation. More outreach on 
recruitment and advising is needed. Micro-credentials could be promoted and inviting to many.  
The College wants to get “Our Story” out to the public.  

 
11. Request for March 2023 BOT Regular Meeting Venue – Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the 

President 
• TOCC Apprenticeship Building, Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ 

The BOT has expressed convening for a regular meeting at Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ. With the 
completion of the Apprenticeship Building, the opportunity is there to tour the building and hold 
a meeting at Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ. 

By consensus the BOT agreed to hold the March 2023 BOT regular meeting at the TOCC 
Apprenticeship Building, Wiṣag Koṣ Maṣcamakuḍ. 

 

7



REPORTS – BY DIVISION and DIVISION COMPONENTS 

The TOCC Division and Division Component Reports were reviewed and high points summarized. 

 
1. President, HR, Operations, Community of Practice, O’odham Language Center, 

Apprenticeship Program 

 
2. Education Division, O’ohana Ki:, NSF STEM, Tohono O’odham Studies 

 
3. Student Services Division 

 
4. Sustainability, IT, IE, Workforce and Community Development 

 
5. Student Life, Residence Life, Athletics & Wellness 

 

GENERAL MATTERS 
 

1. Executive Session 
The BOT excused the attendees and convened for an Executive Session at 12:24 a.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – 1:30 p.m. 
 

A motion was made to adjourn the February 09, 2023 BOT regular meeting. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Mary Bliss, to adjourn the February 09, 2023 
BOT regular meeting. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

8



Tohono O’odham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

Thursday March 09, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

TOCC Boardroom, Ma:cidag Gewkdag Ki:, S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ 
In Person / Virtual Meeting 

 

GENERAL MATTERS 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call  

The Board of Trustees Regular Meeting was Called to Order at 9:37 a.m. by Chairperson Dr. 
Ofelia Zepeda. 

Present Excused 
Absence 

Unexcused 
Absence 

Attendance 
Time 

Board of Trustees 

X   9:37 a.m. Dr. Ofelia Zepeda, Chairperson 
X   9:37 a.m. Bernard Siquieros, Vice-Chairperson 
X   9:37 a.m. Jonas Robles, Elder Member 
 X   Mary Bliss, Member 

X   9:37 a.m. Treena Parvello, Member 
  Administration Members 
X   9:37 a.m. Dr. Paul Robertson, President 
X   9:37 a.m. Dr. Mario Montes-Helu, Dean for Sustainability 
X   9:37 a.m. Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 
X   9:37 a.m. Yolanda Pacheco, Dean of Student Services 
X   9:37 a.m. Dr. Laura Sujo-Montes, Dean of Academics 
    Recorder 

X   9:37 a.m. Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the President 
    Guests 

X   9:37 a.m. Sylvia Hendricks, Director of Student Life 
X   9:37 a.m. Adrianne Rios, Language Specialist 
X   9:37 a.m. Anselmo Ramon, Chair of Workforce & Community Development 
X   9:37 a.m. Camillus Lopez, Senior Cultural Mentor 
X   9:37 a.m. Carmella A. Pablo, Principal Accountant 
X   9:37 a.m. Cassandra Scott, Phoenix Center Director 
X   9:37 a.m. Deshon Miguel, Senior Systems Administrator 
X   9:37 a.m. Ernestine Segundo, Office Coordinator, Apprenticeship Program 
X   9:37 a.m. Frances Benavidez, Director of Tohono O’odham Studies 
X   9:37 a.m. Iris Nez, Bookstore Supervisor 
X   9:37 a.m. Jai Juan, Recruiter 
X   9:37 a.m. Jay Juan, Chief of Operations 
X   9:37 a.m. Jenny Narcho, Language Specialist 
X   9:37 a.m. Katherine Gader, Student Success Coordinator 
X   9:37 a.m. Kristin Eberhardt, Project Director, Title III Grant 
X   9:37 a.m. LeAnn Miles, Office Coordinator, Division for Sustainability 

9



X   9:37 a.m. Madeline Cook, Substitute Librarian 
X   9:37 a.m. Mickie Widener, Human Resources Generalist 
X   9:37 a.m. Novia James, Financial Aid Officer 
X   9:37 a.m. Liz (Ofelia) Zepeda, Library Director 
X   9:37 a.m. Ben Jose, Research Assistant 
X   9:37 a.m. Pauline Nasewytewa, Workforce and Community Development Advisor 
X   9:37 a.m. Sharon Parker, Adjunct Faculty 
X   9:37 a.m. Valentine Lee, Lead Security Guard 
X   9:37 a.m. Ingrid Segundo, Director of Sponsored Projects 
X   9:37 a.m. Earldon Anhill, Electrical Instructor 
X   9:37 a.m. June Starr, Technical Support Manager 
X   9:37 a.m. Annastasia Gonzalez, Office Coordinator, Operations 
X   9:37 a.m. Alberta Espinoza, Counselor 
X   9:37 a.m. Diana Antone, Financial Aid Officer 
     

 

 

2. Invocation 

Jonas Robles provided the invocation. 
 

3. Welcome Newly Appointed Board of Trustees Member – Ms. Treena Parvello 

A welcome and introductions were exchanged with Ms. Treena Parvello, newly appointed BOT 
member. Trustee Parvello provided a bio and expressed positive remarks of the association with 
TOCC. 

 

4. Review and Approval of Agenda 

The BOT meeting agenda was reviewed. 
 

A motion was made to approve the meeting agenda as presented. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Jonas Robles to approve the meeting agenda as 
presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT. 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

Executive Summary: TOCC BOT acted on the following at the March 09, 2023 regular meeting: 
• Approved to table the February 09, 2023 TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes. 
• Accepted the January 2023 Financial Report as presented. 
• Accepted the Human Resources Report for February 2023 as presented. 
• Approved to table the BOT Annual Election of Officers until the April 2023 regular meeting. 
• Approved the Director of Information Technology Systems position. 

10



5. Announcements 

The Community Outreach Events initiated by TOCC’s WCD will be March 03, 10, & 17, 2023. 
TOCC departments and divisions will be available to inform the community of TOCC resources 
and services. A raffle will be conducted throughout the events and snacks will be available. 

The All Staff meeting for March 2023 is cancelled for Friday March 10, 2023 until further notice. 

 

6. Minutes from the February 09, 2023 regular meeting of the TOCC Board of Trustees. 

A motion was made to table the February 09, 2023 TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting 
minutes. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Jonas Robles to table the February 09, 2023 
TOCC Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

7. Call to the Audience – None 
 

8. Coronavirus Update – Dr. Paul Robertson, President 

TOCC is currently reviewing the health screening process for existing students, faculty and staff. 
Visitors to each TOCC campus will continue to go through the health screening process. New 
badges are being considered for staff and students that were issued TOCC badges indicating 
they are fully vaccinated. The kiosk utilized for temperature taking will remain at the health 
screening area. Any updates and notifications will be distributed via email. 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. January 2023 Financials – Joann Miguel, Dean of Finance 

Dean Miguel reviewed the January 2023 Financial Report. 

A motion was made to accept the January 2023 Financial Report as presented. 

MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Jonas Robles to accept the January 2023 
Financial Report as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

2. Human Resources Report – Mickie Widener, Human Resources Generalist 

11



HR Generalist Widener reviewed the Resource List and the Employment Vacancy Activity Log 
information. 

A motion was made to accept the Human Resources Report for February 2023 as presented. 
   

MOTION: Motion by Jonas Robles, Seconded by Bernard Siquieros to accept the Human Resources 
Report for February 2023 as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

  

3. Update on Presidential Search – Mickie Widener, Human Resources Generalist 

HR Generalist Widener reviewed the timeline for the Presidential Search and the job description 
that was included in the board packet. A search committee is to be comprised of TOCC staff, 
faculty, students and community members. The TOCC Board of Trustees will make a selection 
from the recommended candidates. The timeline indicates a new TOCC President is to be 
announced in August 2023. 

 

4. Board of Trustees Annual Election of Officers 

A motion was made to table the BOT Annual Election of Officers until the April 2023 regular 
meeting. 

   
MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Jonas Robles to table the BOT Annual Election of 
Officers until the April 2023 regular meeting. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

5. Board of Trustees Budget Subcommittee 

The BOT Budget Subcommittee will meet to finalize the TOCC FY2024 budget in May 2023. 
FY2024 begins July 01, 2023. Chairperson Zepeda, Vice Chairperson Siquieros and Trustee 
Parvello will comprise the BOT Budget Subcommittee. 

 

6. IT Structure Revisited – Mario Montes-Helu, Dean for Sustainability 

There is a need for a director to closely manage the IT department’s daily tasks. Responsibilities 
include planning for future technology needs, administer Information Systems pertaining to 
infrastructure and cybersecurity and provide training and technical support to the college. 

A motion was made to approve the Director of Information Technology Systems position as 
presented. 

   
MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Jonas Robles to approve the Director of 
Information Technology Systems position as presented. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

12



 

7. Presentations to District Councils Calendar – Evan Thomas, Special Assistant to the President 

Per TOCC’s Charter, the college shall make a formal oral and written report to the Chairperson 
of the Tohono O’odham Nation and the TOLC. With the completion of the 2022 TOCC Annual 
Report, it is customary to present the information to the eleven (11) districts of the Nation.  
 
A calendar outlining upcoming meetings for the district councils was presented and reviewed. 
Preferred meeting dates were indicated for the respective districts and will be confirmed by the 
Special Assistant to the President. The updated information will be distributed via email to BOT. 
 

 

REPORTS – BY DIVISION and DIVISION COMPONENTS 

The TOCC Division and Division Component Reports were reviewed and high points summarized. 

 
1. President, Human Resources, Operations, O’odham Language Center, Apprenticeship Program 

 
2. Education Division, O’ohana Ki:, Tohono O’odham Studies, NSF STEM 

 
3. Student Services Division 

 
4. Sustainability, Information Technology, Office of Institutional Effectiveness, Workforce and 

Community Development 

 
5. Student Life, Residence Life, Athletics & Wellness 

 

GENERAL MATTERS 
 

1. Executive Session 
The BOT excused the attendees and convened for an Executive Session at 11:45 a.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – 12:26 p.m. 

A motion was made to adjourn the March 09, 2023 BOT regular meeting. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Bernard Siquieros, Seconded by Jonas Robles to adjourn the March 09, 2023 BOT 
regular meeting. 
VOTE: 4 FOR, 0 OPPOSED, 0 ABSTAIN, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION APPROVED 

 

13



TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO: BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THRU: TOCC ADMIN (APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION TO BOT ON JAN 31, 2023) 

FROM: JAY JUAN, CHIEF OF OPERATIONS & PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

SUBJECT: FACILITY USE POLICY 

CC: EVAN THOMAS, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE PRESIDENT 

Background: TOCC is experiencing numerous requests for facility use, both by persons 
employed at the College and from community groups.  

Justification: A policy regulating use of facilities is needed to bring order and support for facility 
use. 

Action Requested:  Request review of the attached Draft Facility Use Policy at the April 13, 
2023 BOT meeting. 

Recommendation:  
President recommends Board approval 

14



Policy Statement 

As an educational institution, TOCC’s campus sites, including its buildings and grounds, are used 
to support the College’s educational mission.  This Policy aims to: 1) facilitate the safe, effective 
and responsible use and enjoyment of the College’s campuses in a manner consistent with the 
College’s operations; and 2) identify the responsibilities which attach to such use. 

The College has designated specific indoor and outdoor locations (i.e., all public facilites at 
these TOCC sites: S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ - Black Mountain Campus, Wiṣag Koṣ 
Maṣcamakuḍ - Hawk’s Nest Campus, and S-ki:kig Maṣcama Ki: - Phoenix Site) that can 
generally be reserved by the following people/entities: 

• By faculty and staff for College purposes 
• By TOCC student organizations for activities associated with such organizations 
• By third parties, including Tohono O’odham Nation entities and other educational and 

nonprofit entities outside of the Tohono O’odham Nation 

This Policy does not cover the use of the following facilities: 

• Office spaces and academic spaces typically used solely for instructional purposes 
• Facilities at San Carlos Apache College (SCAC) site, which are administered by SCAC 

 

Reserving College Facilities 

Faculty and Staff Reservations 

Staff and faculty seeking to reserve College Facilities must do so by placing a request 
through School Dude. 

Third Party Reservations 

Reservations must be booked and approved through the Facilities and Operations 
Office.  A reservation to use the College’s grounds or facilities requires completion of an 
online registration form. 

 
Processing Requests for Facilities Use 
 

Normally, use of TOCC Facilities is determined on a first come, first serve basis.  However, there 
may be circumstances in which there is a need to re-locate or re-schedule a previously-reserved 
activity.  In such circumstances, the priority for use will be considered in the following order: 

• Academic/curricular activities 
• Administrative activities 
• Social activities 
• Third Party activities 

15



The College anticipates that it generally will be able to address potential conflicts through re-
locating or rescheduling an activity.  However, the Chief of Operations will resolve any 
remaining conflicts.  This decision is final and not subject to appeal. 

TOCC Support for Facility Use 
 
The College has established a baseline level of services which will be provided for approved 
reservations in which the services were timely requested (5 business days before the event).  
Examples include room/space include the moving of chairs and tables. For reservations in which 
more than minor adjustments will be made to the room/space configuration or in which items 
will be brought to campus in support of the reservation, such set up/take down services must 
be timely arranged through Facilities and Operations or other TOCC department including IT, 
etc.   
 
The following large-scale, official College events are not subject to the analysis of a baseline 
level of services:  Orientation, blessings, cleansings, ground breakings, and 
Commencement/Commencement-related events.  All available College resources will support 
such events. 
 
Cleanup after facility use: The party or parties using space under the guidelines in this policy 
is/are responsible for moving furniture and other elements in the space used back to the 
original configuration unless instructed otherwise by TOCC Operations. The users must also 
work to put the room back into the shape it was when they commenced their use of it.  
 

It is the College’s responsibility to ensure that activities are staffed and managed appropriately 
to ensure the safety and security of the participants as well as College Facilities.  Responsible 
planning therefore requires sufficient lead time for the College to assess the needs of the 
reservation, and to make necessary adjustments.  

If the College determines that insufficient time exists to properly prepare for a reserved activity, 
the College may require the activity to be rescheduled at a future date. Such determinations 
will be made based on objective factors associated with the activity and not on the content of 
the activity or views associated with it. The College thus encourages anyone planning an activity 
to factor in an appropriate amount of time on the front-end for planning.  Generally, higher 
profile or larger activities (i.e., in excess of 75 persons) will require two week notice.  For this 
reason, until the reservation is confirmed by the Facilities and Operations office, the 
department/organization planning an activity should refrain from advertising the activity or 
signing any contracts with third parties until confirmation has been received. 

Before finalizing the reservation, the College will consider the following factors: 

• Appropriateness of venue for the activity; 
• Appropriateness of the date/time for the activity given any academic or 

administrative events scheduled at the same time; 
• Whether food will be served; 

16



• Whether the activity implicates any municipal, county or state Codes/regulations 
(i.e. Fire Code, Health Code); 

• The number of expected attendees; 
• Whether minors will be in attendance; 
• Whether any external speaker/performer is coming (and whether they bring 

personal security details to the activity); 
• Whether the activity will include live streaming, broadcasting, or news media; and 
• Overall safety and security needs.  Appropriate measures may include security 

checkpoints; buffer zones; additional health screening check in stations, provision 
for COVID antibody tests for those without proof of vaccination, alternate 
ticketing or check-in methods; hiring additional security guards or law 
enforcement officers; and searches of attendees. 
 

If you need further guidance please contact the TOCC Office of Facilities and Operations 
through our switchboard at 520-479-2300. 
 
 

17



Tohono O'odham Community College 
 Facility Use Request 

 
Event Title:  

Campus Location:      Date:  

Number of participants:    Room:  

Start Time:      Ending Time: 

 

Organization Information: 

Organization Name:  

Contact Name:     Phone: 

Email:  

  

Setup Requirements  

Number of Tables:     Number of Chairs: 

Table Layout:      (e.g. classroom, conference, or square 
setup) 
 

 Check box for specific layout and on the back of form draw an example. 

 
I.T. Requirements:  
(IT only available Mon-Fri from 8 AM to 5 PM) technicalsupport@tocc.edu 
 

The Tohono O'odham Community College is not responsible for any theft, property loss, 
or any injuries that may occur during the event.  

Approved by: Director/Dean (if TOCC employee) 

Print Name:       

Signature:      Date: 

 

18



TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO:   BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

THRU:  PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

  ADMINISTRATION TEAM – APRIL 11, 2023 

FROM:    LAURA SUJO-MONTES, ACADEMIC DEAN  

SUBJECT: TOCC FACULTY AND ADJUNCT JOB DESCRIPTION MODIFICATION  

DATE:  APRIL 13, 2023  

CC:  EVAN THOMAS, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE PRESIDENT 

Background: In preparation for posting job openings for new positions, it came to my attention 
that job descriptions call for the following minimum qualifications: 

● Master's degree in the teaching field or a masters in any teaching field with 18 graduate 
semesters' hours in the teaching field or a masters in any teaching field with 24 upper 
division and/or graduate semester hours in the teaching field. 

 
If broken down, it states that we can hire a candidate with one of the following degrees: 

● A master’s degree in the teaching field, or 
● A master’s degree in any teaching field with 18 graduate semester hours in the teaching 

field, or 
● A master’s degree in any teaching field with 24 upper division and/or graduate semester 

hours in the teaching field. 
 

Justification: A candidate with a master’s degree in any field and 24 upper division courses 
means that the candidate will have expertise in the field of teaching for which they are being 
hired only at the bachelor’s degree level, which seems deficient to teach at the bachelor’s degree 
freshman and sophomore levels.  

 
 
Action Requested:  Request BOT review and approval of this request 
 
 
Recommendation:  It is recommended that the last option (A master’s degree in any teaching 
field with 24 upper division and/or graduate semester hours in the teaching field) is deleted from 
the job description posting.  
 

19



TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO:   BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

THRU:  PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

  HIMDAG COMMITTEE – JANUARY 2023 

FROM:    JACKSON DOE, APPRENTICESHIP DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: THE O’ODHAM NAMING OF THE APPRENTICE BUILDING 

DATE:  APRIL 13, 2023 

CC:  EVAN THOMAS, SPECIAL ASSISTANT TO THE PRESIDENT 

Background: The Apprenticeship Program wanted to find a name to capture the essence of the 
nearly-completed Apprentice Building located on TOCC’s Wisag Kos campus. We met with the 
Himdag Committee during a meeting in December 2022. The committee suggested the building 
have an O’odham name that reflects the facility’s purpose. 

 

In a subsequent meeting with the Himdag Committee, in January 2023, several names were 
brought forth. “S-wagima Pion Ki” which means “Hard worker House” in Tohono O’odham was 
chosen as an appropriate name for the Apprentice Building. 

 

Justification: The selected name accurately reflects the purpose for which the facility was built 

 
Action Requested:  Request BOT review and approval of this request 
 
 
Recommendation: Respectfully recommend that the BOT approve the selected name for the 
Apprentice Building. 
 
 

20



TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO:  BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

THRU:  ADMINISTRATION 

FROM:  PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

SUBJECT: COVID – 19 PROTOCOL PROPOSED 

CC:  EVAN THOMAS, SPECIAL ASST. TO THE PRESIDENT 

Background: TOCC’s COVID-19 guidance currently requires vaccination proof against COVID-
19 for all persons on campus including students and community members as well as employees. 
Times are different now and the relative closure of the TOCC Campus needs to be relaxed in 
order to encourage face-to-face classes and free intercourse with community members. 

 

Justification: TOCC has had a good solid policy regarding COVID-19 but the situation has 
changed dramatically and opening up the campus is necessary to effectively carry out our plan of 
having folks attend in person. 

 
Action Requested:  Request BOT approval of the attached COVID-19 protocol dated April 13, 
2023. 
 
Recommendation: President recommends BOT approval 
 
 

21



Tohono O’odham Community College 
PO Box 3129, Sells, Arizona 85634 
520-479-2300 
www.tocc.edu 

 
 
 

Coronavirus guidance for TOCC, April 13, 2023 
 

Tohono O’odham Community College (TOCC) provides this guidance in the interest of ensuring a safe 
work environment during the ongoing coronavirus pandemic. This guidance reflects rules issued via Tohono 
O’odham Nation Executive Orders, recommendations issued by the U.S. Center for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC), and TOCC policy. 

 
This guidance supersedes the TOCC coronavirus protocol dated January 9, 2022. This guidance does 
not apply to the San Carlos Apache College (SCAC) site. 

 
1. Mandatory Vaccination 

a. All employees must submit proof of vaccination to the Human Resource office unless he, 
she, or they are granted an exemption for health reasons. All new employees must comply 
before they can report to work. 

b. Health exemptions as described in section 1.a. above must be documented and approved by 
TOCC’s HR Director. 

2. Health Checks and Masking Requirements 

a. Any employee who reports to work with a fever, cough, or other symptoms associated with  
COVID-19 must return home. Employees who experience COVID-19-like symptoms must 
inform the TOCC Human Resource Office and their immediate supervisor. 

b. Masking while on campus is optional and is at the discretion of the individual. 

3. Coronavirus Testing 

a. Anyone experiencing COVID-19 symptoms should be tested. (Symptoms of COVID-19 
may include fever, cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, muscle pain, 
headache, sore throat, chills, repeated shaking with chills, gastrointestinal illness, and 
loss of taste or smell.) 

b. TOCC employees or students traveling out of state must test negative for COVID-19 
within 24 hours of their departure and must test again within 24 hours upon their return. 
Results must be provided to TOCC’s HR Director. 

c. Rapid COVID-19 tests are widely available in drug stores, clinics, and at TOCC through 
Security. There is no charge for testing. 

4. If you test positive for COVID-19 

a. Stay in isolation for five days. 

b. If you have no symptoms after five days, you can return to campus. 

22



c. If you have a fever, continue to stay in isolation until your fever is gone for at least 24 
hours. 

d. To prevent the spread of COVID-19, communicate with people you have recently had 
close contact with and encourage them to get tested, monitor for symptoms, and reduce 
exposure to other people. 

e. Students on a TOCC campus who have tested positive or believe they have been 
exposed to the virus are asked to contact Security.  Staff and Faculty should contact 
the Human Resources Director or Security. 

5. If you have been in close contact with someone with COVID-19 (Quarantine): 

a.  Continue to wear a mask around others.  Test on day five after the contact. If you develop 
symptoms at any time, get tested and stay in isolation until you get your results. If you 
can’t get a test, but still have symptoms, assume you are COVID-19 positive and follow 
guidelines for a COVID-19 positive test (section 4 above). 

b.  If you test negative but still have symptoms, continue to isolate. Get a test in one to two 
days. If you test positive follow guidelines for a COVID-19 positive test (section 4 
above). 

c.  If you test negative, no other test is needed. 

6. Further Questions? Contact your supervisor or instructor. 

 
·          

  

 

23



President’s Report for March/April 2023 
Page 1 of 2   

Item Actions Discussion/Resolution/Comments 

1) Personnel issue:
recruitment
continues to be
slow as it is in
other businesses
and colleges in
the US

HR will be posting positions on 
FaceBook in addition to the other 
outlets. HR will collaborate with 
Tohono O’odham Nation’s HR, 
which may result in additional 
candidates for jobs at TOCC. 

HR will continue to do 
outreach, will continue to 
eliminate unnecessary 
paperwork so as to streamline 
the operation. Good work on 
this has already begun. 

2) American Indian
Higher Education
Consortium and
Membership
Committee and
San Carlos
Apache College

As a Board member of AIHEC I 
attended virtual Membership 
Committee meetings and was able 
to relay information about the 
success of San Carlos Apache 
College in completion of step one 
toward their own accreditation.  

SCAC is to be commended for 
the hard work on developing 
the processes and support 
they need to move forward 
toward separate accreditation. 

3) Updates to
Tohono O’odham
Nation and
Districts.

Presented the Annual Report to 
TOCC’s oversight committee, the 
Human Resource Development 
Committee (HRDC) and to Chukut 
Kuk District at their meeting at 
Miguel Community. 

The Annual Report for 2022 
has been well received. HRDC 
is requesting additional 
information which will be 
provided. TOCC should be on 
the June 2023 agenda to 
present to the Tohono 
O’odham Legislative Council. 

4) Finance Office
updates

Worked with Finance Dean Joann 
Miguel to secure support from 
consultants in light of the 
departure of long-time Controller 
Michael Mainus on April 6.  

The additional support to 
Finance is a temporary matter 
and soon, once an assessment 
has been done, movement 
toward filling the spot/work 
that was in the purview of the 
Controller will be a top 
priority, with a goal of April 
2023. 

5) AIHEC Student
Congress

Attended the AIHEC Board 
meeting at the AIHEC Student 
Congress in Albuquerque, NM 

TOCC was one of several tribal 
colleges that sponsored and 
organized the AIHEC student 
congress in Albuquerque.  

24



President’s Report for March/April 2023 
Page 2 of 2   

Item Actions Discussion/Resolution/Comments 

6) Data and
decisions
regarding student
success

During weekly meetings with 
TOCC administrators, I facilitated 
discussion of outcome data for 
TOCC students. Our Key 
Performance Indicators, including 
the percentage of all college 
credits attempted and resulting in 
grades of “c” or higher, show a 
dropoff in success rates since the 
onset of the pandemic.  

Conducted All Staff meeting 
on last Friday of March, 
focusing especially on work 
being done to support TOCC 
students, including advising 
and outreach as well as fiscal 
support through the American 
Rescue Plan emergency funds. 
Much good work is being 
done. Need to track those 
efforts and consider them in 
relationship to future student 
outcomes.  

7) Tohono Kosin Set up a meeting with new BUSD 
Superintendent Ruben Diaz and 
attended at the Kosin with TOCC 
Dean for Sustainability Mario 
Montes-Helu, Chief of Operations, 
Jay Juan, and Workforce Chair 
Anselmo Ramón. Followed up 
with an additional meeting with 
Mr. Diaz and agreed on terms for 
securing sole TOCC authority over 
the Kosin. 

Work on the Kosin needs to be 
expedited. The lease from EDA 
is expiring and needs to be 
renewed. The ties to BUSD 
need to be completely 
severed. Final work needs to 
be done in the Kosin. 
Personnel positions need to 
be reviewed. People have to 
be hired. A strong plan with 
benchmarks will be developed 
in April 2023. 

8) O’odham
Language Center

After lengthy waiting period, NSF 
contacted TOCC with the news 
that the Language Grant 
submitted in June 2022 has been 
funded for 3.2 million dollars over 
a five year period. Much work 
needs to be done on the various 
goals and objectives of this grant.  

The new grant will require 
additional personnel. The 
language center building is 
underway with the state of AZ 
reviewing documents from the 
builder. Temporarily, until the 
center is built, folks will have 
to double-up in some offices. 

9) S-ki:kig
Maṣcama Ki: - 
Many houses 
site in Phoenix 

Added the Phoenix Director 
Cassandra Scott to the weekly 
admin meetings. Received a new 
lease for the same amount as 
currently expended. New lease 
will run to end of December 2023. 

Will need to secure another 
spot for the center. Work with 
Phoenix Indian Center on 
securing a site in midtown 
Phoenix. 

25



 
Report to TOCC Board of Trustees:  
Jay Juan  
Chief of Operations  
March 2023 
 
 

 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 
Need to schedule a utility 
locate for Wisag Kos 
site.  

Contacted a blue stake/utility locate company from Tucson to survey 
whole Campus. Utility maps for Wisag Kos site have been produced.   

TON Cultural Affairs 
department will need to 
perform an assessment of 
Wisag Kos site.  

Jefford Francisco staked/marked a cultural site on south area of Wisag 
Kos site. 

HVAC system in 
residence hall needs to be 
repaired. 

Parts were ordered and installed.  Leak tests are being conducted and 
system should be back on line soon. 

ADA parking area and 
ramp need to be 
developed for Apedag 
Ki.  

Forming for concrete has been installed, concrete will be scheduled for 
pouring in the next couple of weeks.  

GSA mileage report due.  Mileage gathered from all GSA vehicles and uploaded. 
  

26



TOHONO O’ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE

To: Tohono O’odham Community College Board of Trustees
Thru: Paul Robertson, President
From: Ronald Geronimo, Co-Director

Leslie Luna, Co-Director
Subject: April 2023 Board Report
Date: April 3, 2023
Cc: file

O’odham Ñi’okĭ Ki:

Strategic Initiative Issues/Items Actions/Assessments
Language
Documentation - Print
and Video
Language
Documentation -
O’odham Dictionary

● Online O’odham Dictionary
Project

The OLC met on March 14, 2023, with the Tohono
O’odham Nation Education Department, TON
Technology Department, and Dr. Zepeda on the
progress of the online O’odham Dictionary
Project. A total of 1,882 words have been entered
into the online Living Dictionary platform.

Capacity Building:
Training for speakers on
transcribing, translating,
and Teaching O’odham.
Networking and
Outreach - Organizing
with the Community

● Co-hosted a presentation by the
Indigenous Mapuche from Chili

The OLC co-hosted a presentation by the Mapuche
from Chili on March 31, 2023. The presentation
was titled: “Revitalization and Preservation of the
Indigenous Mapuche Language and Culture.”
Approximately 75 people attended the evening
event. This event was in collaboration with the
University of Arizona College of Education. The
presenters were:

● Kelly Baur, a filmmaker from Arizona
State University.

● Silvia Calfuqueo Lefio, who works with
Mapuche language revitalization and film.

● Carolina Kurruf Poblete, who works with
Mapuche games and sports.

Association of Tribal
Archives, Libraries, and
Museums Grant.

● Doris Duke Project The O’odham Language Center attended and
presented at the Doris Duke Native American Oral
History Revitalization Project in Tucson, Arizona,
on March 7th and 8th. The OLC shared its
experiences with the project, priorities,
accomplishments, processes, and challenges.

Association of Native
American Grant

● Language Resources and Materials
Project

We met with Mark Locklear via Zoom on March
15, 2023, on how to convert the CD Rom to an

27



online-based format. In addition, he shared the
possibility of seeking grant funding for the project.

Arizona State Museum
O’odham/PeePosh
Project
Meetings/Other ● 3/2/2023 OLC meeting on Doris

Duke Presentation
● 3/2/2023 Meeting with the IT

Department on the OLC building
● 3/14/2023 Himdag Committee

Meeting
● 3/21/2023 Planning Meeting on

visitors from Chili
● 3/22/2023 OLC Weekly Meeting
● 3/28/2023 Planning Meeting on

visitors from Chili
● 3/28/2023 Himdag Committee

Meeting
● 3/21/2023 All Staff Meeting

2

28



Tohono Oʼodham Kekel Ha-Maṣcamakuḍ 
Apprenticeship Program 

P.O. Box 3129 Sells, AZ 85634 

Phone: (520) 479-2294 ǀ Fax: (520) 383-8403 
https://tocc.edu/apprenticeship/ 

APPRENTICE PROGRAM UPDATES (APRIL 2023) 

1. 19 active apprentices as of April 5, 2023

2. Three former apprentices re-joined the program in March 2023

3. Alex Vavages is now Acting Chairman of the Apprenticeship Committee

4. Dedication Ceremony for the Newly-renovated Apprentice building is 
April 19, 2023

5. Open house for High School Seniors is April 20, 2023

6. Orientation for active Apprentices is April 27, 2023 

29



Board of Trustees Report 
Laura Sujo-Montes, Dean of Academics 

Education Division March 2023 
 

Issue Discussion Summary/resolution 

Meeting with Mr. 
Ruben Diaz 

Dual Enrollment Diona Williams and I met with Mr. Ruben Diaz, 
BUSD superintendent, to discuss potential offerings 
for dual enrollment students. He invited the principals 
of both high schools. We will offer a language class 
and a drama class. We are still in conversations 
regarding a specific sequence of offerings so students 
finish their AGEC at the same time as their HS.  

S-Ki:kig Maṣcama Ki: 
Phoenix Center 

Summer In-person 
offerings 

Ms. Frances Benavidez was able to identify a language 
instructor and a math instructor to offer those classes at 
the Phoenix Center. We are waiting on their fingerprint 
and background check to hire them. We still need to 
hire a writing instructor. 

Salt River Pima-
Maricopa Indian 
Community 

The meeting with the Salt River Pima-Maricopa Indian 
Community is scheduled for April 5. Cassandra Scott,  
Diona Williams (ECE faculty), Christina Coffman 
(Advisor), and Jai Juan (Recruiter) and I will visit the 
community to offer the ECE certificate and the 
Associate Degree in ECE.  

Curriculum 

Updating programs of 
study 

With the revision of the catalog, some curricular 
discrepancies came to light. Faculty will be submitting 
curricular changes to strengthen programs and to 
clarify the catalog. 
 

Faculty 

Departure and Interviews Our Fine Arts faculty, Linda Chappel, submitted her 
letter of resignation effective at the end of this year’s 
contract. She will continue working as an adjunct 
instructor. Three applicants were interviewed for the 
Social Work faculty position. We will offer the job to a 
person selected by the committee and approved by the 
president. One person was interviewed as a potential 
instructor for the CIS program. He works with the 
Tohono O’odham High School and is interested in 
serving as the bridge to offer dual enrollment to 
THOHS students. 

Faculty Meeting 

Data presentation Drs. Paul Robertson and Mario Montes-Helu presented 
achievement data to faculty. This has prompted us to 
look for ways to increase student success rates, such as 
requesting demonstrations of online programs, that can 
help faculty improve their teaching skills. 

30

mailto:fbenavidez@tocc.edu


Global Meets Local Presentation Dr. Edison Cassadore facilitated a visit and 
presentation by Dr. Hauke Dorsch, director of the 
African Music Archives at Johannes Gutenberg 
University Mainz, Germany. The presentation was 
both in person and in zoom. There were almost 40 
people in attendance. 

AHEC Meeting Faculty Participation Three faculty were in attendance at the conference, 
with two of them serving as coordinators for 
competitions. Our advisor also attended the meeting. 
There was good representation from TOCC. 

Achieving the Dream 
Open Education 
Resources Course 

ATD OER Course We finished the ATD OER Course on March 29. We 
still need to submit a plan of how we are going to use 
what we learned in the course.  

Schedule of Classes 
and Catalog 

Completed and work in 
progress 

The schedules of classes for both summer and fall have 
been published and enrollment started at a brisk pace. 
The catalog is steadily progressing. Some of the 
curricular changes that the faculty will submit to the 
curriculum committee will be reflected in the new 
catalog. 

 
Liz Zepeda, O’ohana Ki:  

Issue Discussion Summary/resolution 
O’ohana Ki: Technology The online services for O’ohana 

Ki: have needed an upgrade and 
update especially now that most 
students are online.  

● The Library Corporation, Library Solution: A 
sorely needed migration to the entire library 
system. This system is web-based and is a bit 
more intuitive than the existing platform. The 
system was originally purchased as a branch 
system with Venito Garcia, San Lucy, and 
San Xavier Libraries. Communication had 
been difficult, but confirmation of the 
migration has been received. Training 
meetings will be scheduled. 

● OverDrive, digital content platform: The 
CARES funding request was approved and 
processed. Meetings are set up with the 
account representatives to begin curating an 
online collection. The goal is to purchase not 
only leisure reading, but titles used for courses 
in addition to digital audiobooks.  

Student and Community 
Engagement 

The big challenge for TOCC has 
been to get more in-person 
attendance and engagement. 

● Later hours have been offered on Mondays 
and Wednesdays until 7 pm.  

● O’ohana Ki: tabled at one of the Friday events 
organized by Wiṣag Koṣ and was able to give 
out books donated by PCPL.  

● An order was placed for an outdoor projector 
and screen to allow for  

Library and Resources Usage The Academic Libraries IPEDS 
report was submitted for this year. 

● Total in-person visits was roughly 106 people 
for the month. 

31



Usage counts of all library 
resources were included in the 
report and it was not surprising, 
but disappointing that usage went 
down this past year. In-person 
usage has increased. 

● A series of emails will go out to remind
students and faculty of services offered by
Oʼohana Ki:--especially since research
projects are forthcoming in the second half of
the semester.

● Interviews are scheduled for new library
assistants. More staff will allow for more
services to be performed.

Tohono O’odham Studies (TOS) 
Report Month: March 2023 
Submitted by: Frances Benavidez 

Topic Discussion Summary/resolution 
Review of Student Course/ 
Program Success Rates 

The success rates of student 
performance in Himdag 
required courses (language and 
history) has fluctuated over the 
past five years. As a part of a 
greater college wide effort to 
maximize student success there 
is a need to assess course/
program pass rates. 

Began initial review of performance data 
and discussion of strategies to strengthen 
student learning. Scheduled a follow-up 
discussion with Dean of Academics for 
April. 

Fulfilling Community, Tribal 
Government and School 
Needs 

Communities, schools, and 
Nation’s governmental 
programs have a desire to 
support students and 
employees’ access to O’odham 
knowledge (1) to strengthen 
continued learning and 
understanding of the unique 
O’odham language, culture, 
and  lifeways and (2) to 
provide culturally 
aware/culturally competent 
services. 

TOCC is recognized as a viable source 
for accessing O’odham specific 
knowledge as it relates to language, 
history, culture, philosophy and 
government. TOS is working 
collaboratively with the- 

● Tohono O’odham Nation’s Attorney
General’s Office to develop and
organize a three-day learning
experience centered around
traditional and customary
“regulatory” practices.

● Sells District to offer a community-
based language class.

● BUSD- to secure language instructors
to teach dual enrollment language
classes for the summer and fall
session.

● Phoenix Center – continuing to seek
adjunct language instructors to

32



enhance language access in the 
Phoenix area. 
 

Community Engagement 
(Strategic Priority- Strengthen 
the Himdag)  

There are collegewide efforts 
to bring unique learning 
experiences to students, staff 
and community of TOCC and 
the Nation. 

Organized, presented at, and/or supported 
several campuswide events throughout 
March: 
● Natural Plant Dye Workshop 

(partnership with TOCC’s Art 
Program) 

● Native FEWS (TOS presentations at 
TOCC and Himdag KI:) 

● Language and Culture Revitalization 
Session of the Mapuche (organized 
by the O’odham Ñi’okĭ Ki:) 

● Global Meets Local (partnership with 
TOCC’s Liberal Arts Program) 

● Tohono Kosin Outreach (organized 
by the Workforce and Community 
Development Program) 

All events were well attended. 
 
 

NSF STEM Grant  
Report Month: March 2023 
Submitted by: Teresa Newberry, Ph.D. 

 
Issue Discussion Summary/resolution 
Create Faculty Learning 
Community (FLC) with on-
going mentoring by 
education consultants and 
cultural mentor. 

Changing instructional practice 
and developing cultural 
competence requires 
significant time, effort, and 
commitment by faculty 
members.  This Maci:dag 
Wo:g (MW) Faculty Learning 
Community (FLC) has an 
active learning group engaged 
in the development of 
culturally-centered curriculum 
projects. Planning continues 
for the activities for the AY 
2022-2023 year.  The theme 
for the year is “Critical and 
Action-oriented Pedagogy 

The FLC met on 3/24 from 9:30-12.  Discussion 
and Sharing Group included a presentation 
discussion on “Making the Best Use of Canvas 
Technology”.  The Active Learning Group 
continued work on revising the A.S. Life Science 
Zais model for their curriculum units based on 
this year’s theme of “Critical and action-oriented 
pedagogy situated in the community.”  Planning 
is underway for the Teaching and Learning 
Showcase which will be on June 6th.  
This work supports Goal 5: Faculty Support and 
Development to provide culturally responsive 
curriculum and Goal 2:  Indigenize and 
transform TOCC STEM curriculum. 

33



Issue Discussion Summary/resolution 
situated in the Community”.  
The FLC is collaborating with 
the Faculty Development 
Committee this year to ensure 
continuation of this activity 
beyond the lifetime of the 
grant. 

This project is piloting the 
use of the Man in the Maze 
Educational Journey to 
increase student success and 
resilience in their academic 
programs. 

Work is on-going to create a 
workbook for students to use 
of the Man in the Maze 
Educational Journey to reflect 
on their learning journey.  
Based on initial work, this 
method. This has proven very 
successful based on student 
feedback. This work is being 
extended into other areas by a 
group of 5 faculty who will 
also be piloting this work in 
their courses.  

A google version of the Man in the Maze 
workbook was created for faculty use in their 
courses.  Camillus Lopez is reaching out to 
faculty to provide support if necessary.   
This work supports Goal 2: Indigenize and 
transform TOCC STEM Curriculum. Obj. 3.2 
MiME Educational Journey with support by 
Cultural Mentor and Student Self-Assessment. 

The Tohono Field Studies 
(TFS) Center will provide 
opportunities for students to 
professional skills so that 
they are prepared for a 
career in the sciences.   

Planning is underway related 
to TFS Center to develop a 
TFS Living Laboratory on 
including for the development 
of a pollinator garden and 
guided walking paths on S-cuk 
Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ.  This 
project will enhance science 
education at TOCC as well as 
provide learning opportunities 
for all TOCC students. 

PI meets regularly with Teresa DeKoker who is 
creating a landscape masterplan focused on 
elements of the TFS Living Lab and is also 
meeting with Jean Hazen who is working on 
developing QR codes which will connect to the 
TOCC plant atlas.  Camillus Lopez is reviewing 
the TOCC plant atlas and working on expanding 
the O’odham names for plants.   
Goal 3:  Promote professional preparedness of 
students. 
 

 

34



Student Services Highlights January 2023 

Dean of Student Services – Yolanda Pacheco 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
American Indian Higher Education 
Consortium (AIHEC) Student 
Conference  

March 4-8, 2023 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 

Attendance: 3 Board of Trustee 
members, 10 students, 4 Faculty, 
8 Staff.   
4 competitions entered: Archery, 
Poetry Slam, Art submissions, 
Critical Inquiry.  
TOCC Critical Inquiry Team 
took 2nd place. 

Commencement ceremony 
May 19, 2023 

Planning continues Baboquivari High School Fine 
Arts Building confirmed for 
ceremony.   
Reception/Dinner will take place 
at S-cuk Du’ag Maṣcamakuḍ. 

 

Counselor – Alberta Espinoza 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
Director through the 
Tribal Affairs Division 
(TAD) at the Office on 
Violence Against Women, 
Sherriann Moore, would 
like to tour 2-3 campuses 
to meet and learn more 
about the campus and the 
needs of campuses to 
respond to 
victims/survivors in April. 

This writer via email, 
welcomed Raquel 
De Herrera and Director 
of TAD to visit. 

Dates for visit have been 
postponed to Fall 2023. Pending 
re-schedule. 

TalkCampus One Incident Report 
received for DTS. This 
Counselor followed up 
with student and 
provided Crisis 
Intervention with student 

Student referred to Behavioral 
Health. 

40 Wraparound sessions 
held. 

Grades, Wellness status 
and modifications to 
accommodations 

Continue with accommodations 
and changes to better suit 
student’s needs. 

3 students have indicated 
Suicidal Ideation. 
Referred to TONHC ER 
for Crisis Response Team 

This writer discussed 
with students the route to 
getting immediate mental 
health services. 

Student’s made follow up 
appointments with their Doctors. 
Students agreed to their Safety 
Plan for decompensation 

35



to evaluate. and whom to call for help. 
Consulted with Himdag 
committee about this trend and 
request for Ma:kai services. 

 

Recruiter – Jai Juan 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
Outreach 1. Kosin Outreach Event 

2. AIHEC 2023 Exhibitor 
3. Gila River Indian 
Community College Fair 
4. Baboquivari Unified School 
District Community Day 
5. TOKA Immersion Camp 
6. Baboquivari High School 
Virtual Visit 

1. Was able to troubleshoot 
simple issues students 
incurred. Helped answer 
questions regarding the 
admissions process and the steps 
of registering for 
classes. 
2. Spoke with other tribal college 
students, TCU staff 
and faculty, and High school and 
youth resource 
support staff. 
3. Attend the college fair in 
Sacaton, met the education 
advisors for GRIC, and spoke 
with GRIC high school 
students and community 
members. 
4. Attend BUSD’s field day-
themed community event. 
Spoke with students of all ages 
and met with elders 
and school staff. Highlighted our 
“free” offerings and 
upcoming semester dates. 
5. Spoke with elementary to high 
school-aged girls at 
the TOKA Immersion Camp. 
Discusses what college 
is, our dual enrollment program, 
and basic facts 
about our college. 
6. Presented to the entire high 
school student body. 
Provided information on the 
college, our mission, 
program offerings, and student 
support services. 

36



Ongoing 
Projects 

1. College Preview Day 
2. Commencement 
3. American Indian College 
Fund’s Digitalization Project 
4. Dual Enrollment 
5. Himdag Committee SDM 
Campus Video 
6. Website 
7. Data Clean Up 

1. In the early stages of planning 
the event 
scheduled for May 5, 2023. BHS 
juniors and 
seniors will be at S-cuk Du’ag 
Maṣcamakuḍ. 
2. Working with the 
commencement committee to 
plan this year’s ceremony. We 
will have the 
ceremony at the Fine Arts 
Building in Topawa 
and hold the reception in 
Gewkadag Ṣon Ki:. 
3. Assisting Annamarie Stevens 
with the 
digitalization project. I serve as 
the lead for the 
high school portion of the 
project. 
4. Collected all required 
documents for dual 
enrollment students. 
5. No update; the next meeting is 
scheduled for 
early April. 
6. No update; I have not had 
much time to dedicate 
to the data clean-up efforts. 

Admissions 1. Upload Student Documents 
2. Registration Announcement 

1. Assist our Data Entry Clerk 
with uploading 
students’ required documents. 
2. Sent college-wide email to 
remind students 
when Summer and Fall 
registration is set to 
open. email also notified 
students of the date 
change for the Fall registration 
window. 

 

 

 

 

37



Phoenix Center Director – Cassandra Scott 

TOPIC DISCUSSION SUMMARY/RESOLUTION 
Visitors over the past couple 
months 

Beginning with Dec. 2022 
records of students vs. TOCC 
employee/staff visitors 

February = 67 students/visitors, 
2 Main Campus staff 
March= 31 students/visitors 

Outreach  Focusing on outreach & 
collaboration, planning an Open 
House & in person Orientation at S-
Ki:kig Mascama Ki: for Fall 
enrollment 
February outreach events: Tolleson 
Union High School Parent Night, 
Navajo Preparatory School board 
meeting attendee, Salt River Pima 
Maricopa First Friday Chat with 
Higher Education, Phoenix Indian 
Center civic engagement meeting, 
Phoenix Center host Native 
American Workshop Mural 
presentation,  
March outreach events: Estrella 
Foothills lunch event, Coaching 
AIHEC Critical Inquiry Team, 
Phoenix Union High School NAEP 
Career Night, Scholarship reviewer 
AZ Community Foundation, 
Phoenix Center host Tohono 
O'odham Urban Community 
candidates forum, Westwood High 
School Pow Wow, network at 3rd 
Spring Indigenous Education 
Gathering UofA. 

Other items of interest  3/29 location update, remain in 
space until December 2023.  

Position posted for Phoenix 
Center Technician, interviews 
ongoing. 

 

Student Success Coordinator – Katherine Gader 

Student Retention Report Contacted around 500 students 
each with personal emails. Will 
continue contact.   

I have had more responses than I 
thought from students who were 
grateful to be reached out to 

Assessments and Testing Developing assessments for 
students regarding career 
interests 

I have also spent time 
developing a Google Doc of the 
Career Survey form that 

38



populates in Excel, to keep track 
of student interests. 

Other items of interest Collaborations I have also been working with 
Alberta re students of concern, 
as well as collaborating with 
Anselmo Ramon regarding GED 
and other testing possibilities. 

 

Disability Consultant – Dr. Anthony Osborn 

Wraparounds Conducted 6 
wraparounds to address a 
student’s failing grades 
and lack of Satisfactory 
Academic Progress. Also 
reviewed new three new 
applications for ADA 
Services and admitted the 
students into the 
program. 

Strategies were provided to the 
students relative to 
assignment completion through 
task analysis and 
description. This information 
was also shared with faculty. 
Accommodations were prepared 
to address the new 
students’ needs. 

Participated in 2 
Roundtable event with the 
U of A Transition Ahead 
program. 

Discussed strategies 
related to the students 
self-advocating and 
provided 
recommendations to use 
the accommodations to 
needs. 

Focused on needed info for 
transfer to a 4-year college 
related to disabilities and the 
importance of transition 
planning. 

Staff development related 
to the ADA program. 

Addressed the need for 
faculty ensure 
accommodations are 
being implemented for 
each student regardless of 
their location. 

Coordinated a message to faculty 
re-emphasizing this 
requirement with encouragement 
to contact the DRO with 
questions or concerns. 

 

39



Board of Trustees Report 
Dean for Sustainability Mario Montes-Helu, Ph.D. 

 
Key Issues/Items Addressed in March 2023 

 

Issues/Items Discussion/Situation Summary/Resolution 

Workforce 
and 
Community 
Development 
(WCD) 
 
 

Outreach activities The WCD had outreach events during the month 
of March at the Tohono Kosin.  We were able to 
showcase the College programs, the work of the 
LGOS, the Apprenticeship program as well the HR 
department, and the Tohono O’odham Studies 
programs among others. The events took place on 
March 3,10 and 17. 

Solar Panel Installer 
Certificate position 

We are still looking for an instructor for the Solar 
Installer program. We had two interviews in March 
however, we were not able to select any of them 
for the position. 

Tohono Kosin Paul Robertson, Jay Juan and I had a meeting 
with the BUSD superintendent Ruben Diaz to 
discuss the partnership regarding the Kosin. We 
agreed to terminate the IAG between the two 
institutions. Regarding the equipment that belongs 
to BUSD, we are in the process of acquiring the 
equipment that TOCC will use for student training 
as well as to open the Kosin to the public. 

NTIA Grant Activities ● We had an interview and selected the 
applicant for the Director position. He 
accepted the position and HR had his 
background checked. He will start working 
in April.  

● We were also promoting the project at the 
Tohono Kosing outreach event and 
collecting patrons’ information. This 
information will be used to inform the 
curriculum that will be developed for the 
community training on basic computer 
skills. 

● We also had a meeting with Brian Fickett, 
General Manager of TOUA, and they will 
develop a process to provide connectivity 
to participants in the program. 

40



LGOS USDA-NIFA activities ● LGOS participated in the event at TOCC on 
March 2023 of the Food, Energy, and 
Water System (FEWS). Participants were 
from different tribal nations from all over the 
US. Clifford Pablo, Joyce Miguel, and the 
AG Interns presented their findings on the 
effects of the increase of temperatures in 
the O’odham crops due to global warming.  

● Dr. Adrian Quijada had a meeting with 
George Goode from the Native American 
Horse Education Foundation to discuss 
creating a horseshoeing micro-credential 
training where members of the community 
will get horseshoeing techniques to take 
care of their horses.  

IT Department  
  

IT issues ● The IT department continued providing 
support to staff, faculty, and students 
related to computer issues. One issue was 
the scam email that was targeting students 
and we blocked the source of the email 
scam.  We will develop a plan to prevent 
TOCC fall into cybersecurity attacks by 
identifying email scams with fake 
information that can produce damage to 
our cyber infrastructure. 

● We also had problems with the connectivity 
of the faculty building where the internet 
works intermittently. After much 
troubleshooting, we believe that the fiber 
that connects the building is damaged. We 
are working on fixing the problem. 

Institutional 
Effectiveness 
Office 

Webpage and Data 
Hub updates 

Ben Jose completed the submission of the Ipeds 
report this month.  The reports are provided by 
different offices of the college and he was able to 
complete them in a timely manner. 

ANA grant No-cost Extension 
Approval 

We received a no-cost grant extension for the GIS 
working group to start training for the Nation’s 
departments. We will also provide equipment for 
them and training.  We will also support the group 
to develop a GIS department in the Nation. 

 

41



B
en

 J
os

e’
s 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
2
3
 R

ep
or

t 
to

 T
O

C
C
 B

oa
rd

 o
f 
T
ru

st
ee

s 
 

 K
ey

 Is
su

es
/I

te
m

s a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 M
ar

ch
, 2

02
3 

 

 Is
su

es
/I

te
m

s 
A

ct
io

ns
/A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Su

m
m

ar
y/

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

IP
ED

S 
Sp

rin
g 

C
yc

le
 

 E
xt

ra
ct

, c
om

pi
le

, o
rg

an
iz

e,
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

. 
A

ll 
re

qu
ire

d 
su

rv
ey

s h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

, 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 su

bm
itt

ed
 in

 th
e 

m
on

th
 o

f M
ar

ch
 

20
23

 to
 c

lo
se

 o
ut

 th
e 

Sp
rin

g 
cy

cl
e 

of
 IP

ED
S 

re
po

rti
ng

. T
he

se
 su

rv
ey

s i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

Fa
ll 

En
ro

llm
en

t, 
Fi

na
nc

e,
 H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
A

ca
de

m
ic

 L
ib

ra
rie

s r
ep

or
ts

. 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 

M
tg

s. 
A

tte
nd

 a
nd

 P
ar

ta
ke

 
O

IE
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 b

i-m
on

th
ly

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 m
ee

tin
gs

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 fo
cu

s i
s t

he
 

ou
tre

ac
h 

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

n 
th

e 
na

tio
n 

in
 e

ffo
rt 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s t

he
 c

ol
le

ge
 h

as
 to

 
of

fe
r. 

O
IE

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

ef
fo

rt 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.  

C
ol

le
ge

 B
oa

rd
 –

 B
ig

 
Fu

tu
re

 S
ur

ve
y 

 
Ex

tra
ct

, c
om

pi
le

 a
nd

 o
rg

an
iz

e 
da

ta
 

TO
C

C
 p

ro
vi

de
s i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
nu

al
ly

 to
 

pr
os

pe
ct

iv
e 

st
ud

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Bi
g 

Fu
tu

re
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n 

to
 a

ss
is

t t
he

m
 w

ith
 th

ei
r d

ec
is

io
n 

on
 c

ho
os

in
g 

a 
co

lle
ge

 to
 a

tte
nd

.  
 

20
23

 H
LC

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l 

U
pd

at
e 

Ex
tra

ct
, c

om
pi

le
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

da
ta

 
O

IE
 a

ss
is

te
d 

in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 st
ud

en
t e

nr
ol

lm
en

t 
da

ta
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
s o

f C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

an
d 

de
gr

ee
 p

ro
gr

am
s a

nd
 H

ea
d 

co
un

ts
 fo

r t
he

 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l u
pd

at
e.

  

42



Board of Trustees Report 
Anselmo Ramon, M.Ed. 

Chair of Workforce & Community Development 
 March 2023 Report 

 
Challenges-Resolutions and Accomplishments 

 
Program Status Recruitment  Summary 

Apprenticeship 
(WCD) 
Directs any 
new 
Apprenticeship 
inquiries and 
former 
students who 
would like to 
re-enroll or 
enroll to Mr. 
Jackson Doe, 
Apprenticeship 
Director 

Solar Installer Program 

WCD division began the solar 
curriculum instruction with BCT 
120 H, held every Saturday for the 
Fall 2022 and Spring 2023 
semester. 

The National Electric Code course 
will be offered for the Summer 
2023 session. 

 
 

As part of the solar curriculum 
the SLR 104 Basic Electricity 
course has been added to the 
spring 2023 schedule of classes. 
This will be an 8-week session 
held on Saturdays at Wisag Kos 
Mascamakud, along with the 
BCT 120H course a 16 week 6 
credit course. 

WCD held a Men’s Circle on 
Traditional Roles of O’odham 
Men in O’odham Himdag. The 
meeting took place on 
Wednesday March 29, 2023 
from 5:30PM to 7PM. A light 
meal was provided by Pauline 
N, WCD. 5 men attended. 
Another session will be held at 
the end of April 2023. 

 
TOCC/Workforce 
Community Development 
Community Outreach Event 
held at the Tohono Kosin, 
(March 10, then the 
following Fridays, 17th and 
the 24th, 2023 from 10AM to 
330PM). This event utilized 
the Kosin as a base of 
operation in which to 
advertise TOCC’s Programs 
and services. 
127+ signed in 
$350-$400 of raffle prizes 
donated by TOCC 
employees. Basha’s 
contributed $300 gift card. 
Food was purchased with 
the gift card. Nachos, 
Tepary beans, hot dogs and 
water. The Kosin provided 
visitors a place to meet with 
TOCC staff, view the photo 
gallery with past TOCC 
graduates, talk with 
departments, take free books 
donated by TOCC library. 
Programs represented: 
Presidents Office, HR, 
Education, O’odham 
Studies, Early Childhood, 
GIS, Writing, Language 
Center, Library, Agriculture, 
GED/CCP, Student 
Services, Student Life-
Wellness center and the 
Apprenticeship program. 
GED/CCP student 
volunteers. This was a 
successful event with many 
new contacts made and 
plenty of encouragement for 
the community to find out 
more of what TOCC has to 
offer. 

43



 
 

Culinary Arts 
Program 

Tohono Kosin is in a transition 
time with BUSD and TOCC. The 
goal is to set up a CUA program 
with the opportunity to take CUA 
courses on a short term basis and 
continue to offer courses as a dual 
enrollment option with our local 
high schools. 

Mr. Jay Juan, Chief of 
Operations continues to keep us 
updated on the work that is 
being done at the Tohono Kosin. 
Once the Fire Chief completes 
the safety test and gives us the 
‘go ahead’ we can then begin to 
fully utilize the Kosin in the 
near future. 
 

TOCC office of 
Sustainability and WCD 
will continue to 
communicate with BHS and 
TOHS for services 
associated with the Culinary 
Arts Program and dual 
enrollment. 
 
 

Pre-College 
GED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
One Pre-College in-person GED 
position is currently open and 
interviews are being scheduled as 
candidates apply and who meet the 
criteria for the posisiton. 
 
The Pre-College GED program has 
Aztec software that assist students 
in building academic skills in all of 
the GED content areas, 4 
computers are available for student 
use in the GED classroom. 
 
Pre-College GED students now 
have the opportunity to take the 
practice test from home as well as 
the official GED test. 
 
The Office of Sustainability and 
WCD have been working to 
establish the workflow for the 
(NTIA) The National 
Telecommunications Information 
Administration Grant. This work is 
in tandem with Apex Applied 
Technology.  A preliminary 
detailed work plan has been set up 
to begin the process of establishing 
the following. 

1. TON Computer Literacy 
Needs assessment (Apex 
& WCD) 

2. Positions necessary to 
begin the work of the 
NTIA grant (TOCC) 

3. Series of planning 
meetings to be sure we are 
in line with our federal 
lead person. 

GED Program March 2023 
Activities. 

• 10 Independent/ 
foundations students 

• 15 students in Teacher 
Lead (Zoom) sessions 

• Ongoing assessments 
and applications 
continue to be process 
for prospective students. 

 

 

 

A standing meeting with TOUA 
Management is held monthly to 
communicate the needs we 
anticipate for the Connecting 
Minority Communities initiative 
through the NTIA grant. This 
meeting serves to collaborate on 
the end user needs and the IT 
infrastructure that will be 
necessary to connect community 
members to the internet. 
Computer equipment will also 
need to be purchased and be 
ready to offer the computer 
literacy skills to begin leaning 
the internet road. 

 

WCD office provided the NTIA 
surveys for the visitors at the 
TOCC Outreach Event held at 
Tohono Kosin in March 2023. 

 

Bridget Pre-College GED 
Online Instructor continues 
to review applications and 
assign assessment tests for 
the 4 GED subject areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NTIA positions are 
currently posted on TOCC 
HR. This is a 2-year project. 
Connecting Tohono 
O’odham Communities with 
the Internet. 

• NTIA Project 
Director (Pending) 

• Curriculum 
Coordinator 

• Computer Literacy 
Instructor 

 
 
LeAnn & Pauline have been 
working to coordinate the 
TOCC Community 
Outreach Event to be held 
each month from WCD. 
 
 

 

44



TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO:    BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

THRU:  PRESIDENT PAUL ROBERTSON 

FROM:  JAI JUAN  

SUBJECT: SUMMER CONFERENCE GRANT PROPOSAL   

DATE:  APRIL 10, 2023 

CC:  YOLAND PACHECO, STUDENT SERVICES DEAN 

Background 

The American Indian College Fund is providing Summer Conference Grants to Tribal Colleges 
and Universities, schools, and organizations who want to host a hybrid gathering for the Summer 
of Success Conference- Pathways to the Future: Connecting your journey to community, values 
and culture conference with in-person activities and programs at their campuses. The conference 
will take place June 13th, 14th and 15th 2023 with virtual sessions from 10 am to 2 pm. Funds of 
up to $10,000 can be requested for event costs including: technology needs, staffing, 
transportation for attendees, materials, supplies, meals, and incentives. Funds can also be used 
for activities like bridge programming and orientations that are held in conjunction with the 
conference. 

Justification 

The funding provided by the American Indian College Fund will give us the opportunity to offer 
a pilot summer program at S-cuk Du'ag Maṣcamakuḍ to our youth and any interested community 
memebers. The sessions and activities covered in the hybrid conference will address college 
readiness topics, life skills and include cultural concepts. 
 
Action Requested 
Board approval is requested to approve submission of a proposal.  
 
 
Recommendation 
The President recommends approval of the Board of Trustees. 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 

TOCC GRANT PROPOSAL SUBMISSION AUTHORIZATION 
 
 
DATE: ____4/7/2023_____             SUBMITTED BY:  __Jai Juan  
 
 
Funding Number:  $10,000        CFDA # if applicable: __________ 
 
Letter of Intent required?  No  Due Date (if applicable): 10/15/2021 
 
Grant Submission Date: April 15,2023   Match Required?  No 
(Note: if match required, specify how much, and type, i.e., cash, in kind, etc.) 
   
 
Indirect Cost allowed? N/A                        Amount (%): N/A 
 
Department or Division Requesting Grant:  Student Services ____ 
 
Background and Justification: 
 
The American Indian College Fund is providing Summer Conference Grants to Tribal Colleges 
and Universities, schools, and organizations who want to host a hybrid gathering for the Summer 
of Success Conference- Pathways to the Future: Connecting your journey to community, values 
and culture conference with in-person activities and programs at their campuses. The conference 
will take place June 13th, 14th and 15th 2023 with virtual sessions from 10 am to 2 pm. Funds of 
up to $10,000 can be requested for event costs including: technology needs, staffing, 
transportation for attendees, materials, supplies, meals, and incentives. Funds can also be used 
for activities like bridge programming and orientations that are held in conjunction with the 
conference. 
 
The funding provided by the American Indian College Fund will give us the opportunity to offer 
a pilot summer program at S-cuk Du'ag Maṣcamakuḍ to our youth and any interested community 
memebers. The sessions and activities covered in the hybrid conference will address college 
readiness topics, life skills and include cultural concepts. 
 
Summary:  
 
The American Indian College Fund is providing up to $10,000 for TCUs and partners to host a 
hybrid gathering for the Summer of Success Conference- Pathways to the Future: Connecting 



2 
 

your journey to community, values and culture conference with in-person activities and 
programs at their campuses. 
. 
How the project will meet the TOCC Mission and Strategic Plans: 
 
The funding provided by the American Indian College Fund will give us the opportunity to run a 
pilot summer program for our youth. The hybrid conference touches on the topics of financial 
literacy, career exploration, mentorship, time management, personal growth and many others. 
Which aligns with our mission and goals to provide quality higher education services to our 
community.  
 
 
Proposed Principal Investigator or Project Director:  ___N/A_______________ 
   
Lead writer: __N/A___________ 
 
Current staff to be paid under grant? (List): 
None 
 
New staff to be added? (Number and positions):  
None 
 
Contractors (external evaluator required, etc):  
None 
 
Approval by Division Dean and Date: ____April 13, 2023____________________ 
 
Review by Leadership and Approval Date: __April 13, 2023       ______________ 
 
Board Review and Approval Date:   ______________________________________ 
 

























































 

 
TOHONO O'ODHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TO:  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

THRU:  PAUL ROBERTSON, PRESIDENT 

FROM:  SONYA JUAN, HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR  

SUBJECT:        AGENDA ITEM—-MARCH 2023 RESOURCE LIST 

DATE:        4/13/2023 

CC:  FILE 

Background  
The following employees are recommended for the Board’s consideration for three new hires, two transfers, 

and two separations. 
 

Recommendation 

The President recommends the approval of the employees on the attached list for two new hires, four 
transfers, and two separations for the Tohono O'odham Community College.             

             

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOURCE LIST  
March 2023 



 

2 

 
    

   New Hire: 

Name Position Date 
Joseph Renegar HR Generalist 3/23/2023 

 

Joseph Renegar was Social Media Content Moderator with Alorica for 2 
years and 9 months. Joseph was and still is Social Media Coordinator with 

Horizon Church for 1 year and 1 month. Joseph was Social Media 
Coordinator with Papago Assembly of God for 1 year. Joseph Renegar 

was Media Intern with Cochise Community College for 5 months. 
 

Joseph Renegar earned his General Studies/Communications Associate’s 
Degree from Cochise Community College.  

 

Dehpue Zuo NTIA Project Director 4/10/2023 

 

Dehpue Zuo was Executive Director/Consultant for 2 years and 11 
months. Dehpue was Director for International Cooperation with 

Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Republic of Liberia for 1 year and 9 months. 
Dehpue was Assistant Director for Economic Affairs with Ministry of 

Foreign Affairs, Republic of Liberia for 2 years and 1 month. Dehpue was 
Macroeconomist/Poly Anlayst with LIMPAC for 5 years and 8 months. 
Dehpue has been Lecturer of Economics with University of Liberia and 

AME University, Monrovia, Liberia for 14 years. Dehpue Zuo was 
Financial Analyst/Forecaster for ULICAF for 4 years and 5 months. 
Dehpue was Payroll Associate with Fidelity Investment for 3 months. 
Dehpue was Data Analyst with Liberia Democracy Watch for 5 years. 

 
Dehpue earned his Applied Economics Master’s of Science Degree from 
Southern New Hampshire University. Dehpue earned his Economics 
Bachelor’s Degree from University of Liberia. 

 

 

Transfers: 

Name Position Date 
Adrian Quijada Director of Land Grant Office of Sustainability 4/17/2023 

 

Adrian Quijada was Biodiversity and Research Specialist with TOCC for 6 
months. Adrian was Full-Time Faculty with TOCC for 5 years. Adrian 

was Adjunct Faculty with TOCC for 1 year. Adrian was Assistant 
Research Scientist with Institute of Environment at University of Arizona 

for 2 years. Adrian was Adjunct Assistant Professor/Research Scientist 
with School of Natural Resources and the Environment at University of 

Arizona for 3 years. Adrian was Research Professor with Universidad 
Michoacana de San Nicolas de Hidalgo (UMNSH) for 3 years. Adrian was 
Data Management Technician with School of Psychology, University of 

Wales, UK for 1 year. Adrian was Laboratory and Field Research 
Technician with Universidad Nacional Autonoma de Mexio (UNAM) for 

2 years. 
 

 



 

3 

Adrian Quijada earned his Philosophy Doctorate’s Degree from 
University of Wales, United Kingdom, Ecology and Evolution. Adrian 

earned his Sciences/Ecology Master’s Degree from Universidad Nacional 
Autonoma de Mexico. Adrian earned his Sciences/Basic Field Ecology 

Bachelor’s Degree from Universidad Estatal de Sonora. 
Diana Antone Financial Aid Manager 4/10/2023 

 

Diana Antone was Financial Aid Officer with Tohono O’odham 
Community College for 4 months. Diana was Financial Aid Technician 
with Tohono O’odham Community College for 2 years and 11 months. 
Diana has been Topawa Community Representative/District Council 

Member with Babaoquivari District for 3 years and 10 months. Diana was 
Student Worker/Intern with Tohono O’odham Community College for 2 

years and 11 months. 
 

Diana Antone earned her Liberal Arts Associate’s of Arts Degree from 
Tohono O’odham Community College. Diana Antone earned her Early 

Childhood Education Associate’s of Arts Degree from Tohono O’odham 
Community College. 

 

Jeanita Sophie 
Hungrywolf Student Support Specialist 4/10/2023 

 Sophie Hungrywolf earned her Process Bachelor’s Degree from 
University of Arizona.   

 

 

Separations: 

 
Name Position Date 

Michael Mainus Controller 4/7/2023 
 

Name Position Date 
Sonya Juan Human Resources Director 4/7/2023 

 

Name Position Date 
Novia James Financial Aid Officer 5/26/2023 

 

 

 

 



 

   
   

   
U

pd
at

ed
 0

4/
13

/2
02

3  
 

 

 
 T

oh
on

o 
O

'o
dh

am
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t V
ac

an
cy

 A
ct

iv
ity

 L
og

  
M

ar
ch

 2
02

3 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e/
Fa

cu
lty

/E
xe

m
pt

 
 

 
Va

ca
nt

 P
os

iti
on

 
 

Di
vi

si
on

 

 
Number of Applicants 

 
Tohono O’odham 
Native American 

Other 

 
Application 

w/documents 
Complete 

Date forwarded to 
screening committee 

Recommended for 
Interview 

Interview Scheduled 

 
Recommendation 

Made 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ac
ad

em
ic

 A
dv

is
in

g 
&

 C
ar

ee
r 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
Ed

u 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pe
nd

in
g 

hi
rin

g 
m

an
ag

er
 re

vi
ew

 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

As
si

st
an

t-
 F

in
an

ce
 

Ad
m

in
-F

in
an

ce
 

1 
 

 
1 

 
1 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pe

nd
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 

Co
m

pu
te

r L
ite

ra
cy

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Co

or
di

na
to

r 
Su

st
ai

n 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

Di
re

ct
or

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

Sy
st

em
s 

Su
st

ai
n 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pe

nd
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 

Du
al

-E
nr

ol
lm

en
t C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

St
ud

 S
vs

 
1 

1 
 

 
 

1 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
1 

 
 

 
 

Pe
nd

in
g 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l A
id

 M
an

ag
er

 
St

u 
Sv

s 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
1 

 
3/

24
/2

02
3 

1 
 

Po
si

tio
n 

fil
le

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

4/
10

/2
02

3 

N
TI

A 
Pr

oj
ec

t D
ire

ct
or

 
Su

st
ai

n 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
1 

 
2/

22
/2

02
3 

1 
 

Po
si

tio
n 

fil
le

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

4/
10

/2
02

3 

Pl
um

bi
ng

  A
pp

re
nt

ic
e 

In
st

ru
ct

or
 

Ap
pr

en
tic

e 
Pr

og
. 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

 
 

 
 

 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 

Pr
e-

Co
lle

ge
 G

ED
 In

st
ru

ct
or

 (1
) 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

Co
m

m
. D

ev
lp

. 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

dv
er

tis
e 

So
ci

al
 W

or
k 

In
st

ru
ct

or
 

Ed
u 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

3 
2 

3/
23

/2
02

3 
&

 
3/

24
/2

02
3 

1 
2 

Pe
nd

in
g 

st
ar

t d
at

e 

So
la

r E
ne

rg
y 

In
st

ru
ct

or
 

 
Su

st
ai

n 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
2 

 
3/

01
/2

02
3 

&
 

3/
7/

20
23

 
 

 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 

W
el

ln
es

s P
ro

gr
am

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 
St

ud
 L

ife
 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

 
 

 
 

 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 

  



 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
ag

e 
2 

of
 2

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
U

pd
at

ed
 0

4/
13

/2
02

3 
 

   
To

ho
no

 O
'o

dh
am

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t V

ac
an

cy
 A

ct
iv

ity
 L

og
 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
3 

   
Ho

ur
ly

 
 

 
Va

ca
nt

 P
os

iti
on

 
 

Di
vi

si
on

 

 
Number of Applicants 

 
Tohono O’odham 
Native American 

Other 

 
Application 

w/documents 
Complete 

Date forwarded to 
screening committee 

Recommended for 
Interview 

Interview Scheduled 

 
Recommendation 

Made 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

Ye
s 

N
o 

 

Co
m

pu
te

r L
ite

ra
cy

 T
ra

in
er

 
Su

st
ai

n 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
1 

 
2/

14
/2

02
3 

 
1 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

ad
ve

rt
is

e 

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 G
en

er
al

is
t 

Ad
m

in
/F

in
. 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

2 
 

2/
23

/2
02

3 
1 

1 
Po

si
tio

n 
fil

le
d 

3/
20

/2
02

3 

Li
br

ar
y 

As
si

st
an

ts
 (2

) 
Ed

u.
 

3 
3 

 
 

1 
2 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

1 
6 

4/
5/

20
23

 
 

 

Pe
nd

in
g 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 

ch
ec

k 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

pe
ci

al
is

t 
La

ng
 C

en
te

r 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

ad
ve

rt
is

e 

Se
cu

rit
y 

G
ua

rd
 

St
ud

 L
ife

 
0 

 
 

 
 

 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
2 

 
2/

24
/2

02
3 

 
 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

ad
ve

rt
is

e 

St
ud

en
t S

up
po

rt
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t 
St

ud
 S

vs
 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

04
/1

3/
20

23
 

1 
 

3/
28

/2
02

3 
 

 
Fi

lle
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
04

/1
0/

20
23

 

To
ho

no
 O

’o
dh

am
 A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
 &

 
N

at
ur

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 (2

) 
Su

st
ai

n 
2 

1 
 

1 
1 

1 
04

/1
3/

20
23

 
2 

2 
12

/2
1/

20
22

 
2 

 

Pe
nd

in
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 (1
), 

Pe
nd

in
g 

m
an

ag
er

 
re

vi
ew

 (1
) 

 



 

 

TOCC EMPLOYEE STATISTICS 
(March 2023) 

 

FULL TIME POSITIONS 
  Numbers Percentages  
    
Full-time positions: 118   
       Filled Positions 93 79% 
       Vacant Positions 25 21% 
      
Female 54 58% 
Male 39 42% 
      
Ethnicity      
      Tohono O'odham 63 68% 
      Native American Other 7 8% 
      Hispanic 3 3% 
      White 15 15% 
      Black 3 3% 
      Asian 2 2% 
      
Regular Staff 99   
Filled 77 78% 
Vacant 22 22% 
      
Instructors Positions 19   
Filled 16 84% 
Vacant 3 16% 
      
Commuters 47 51% 
Local 46 49% 

 
 

PART-TIME & TEMP POSITIONS 
  Numbers Percentages  
Part-time & Temp positions: 26   
       Filled Positions 16 62% 
       Vacant Positions 10 38% 
     
Female 13 81% 
 Male 3 19% 
     
Ethnicity    
      Tohono O'odham 6 38% 
      Native American Other 4 25% 
      Hispanic 1 6% 
      White 5 31% 
      Black 0 0% 
      Asian 0 0% 
     
Commuters 9 56% 



 

 

Local 7 44% 
 



 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1
 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
/I

te
m

s a
dd

re
ss

ed
 M

ar
ch

 H
R

 D
ir

ec
to

r R
ep

or
t 

          

Is
su

es
/I

te
m

s 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n/
 S

itu
at

io
n 

 
Su

m
m

ar
y/

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

 
H

R
 A

rc
hi

ve
 

H
R

 fi
le

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 p

ur
ge

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 fo

r s
hr

ed
di

ng
.  

G
oi

ng
 G

re
en

 
Je

nz
ab

ar
 H

R
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

te
d 

in
 T

ra
in

in
g 

in
 a

n 
ef

fo
rt 

to
 fi

nd
 th

e 
be

st
 so

lu
tio

n 
fo

r e
le

ct
ro

ni
ca

lly
 st

or
in

g 
H

R
 

re
co

rd
s. 

In
te

rv
ie

w
s 

C
on

du
ct

ed
 S

ev
en

 (7
) i

nt
er

vi
ew

s:
  S

oc
ia

l W
or

k 
In

st
ru

ct
or

 
(3

), 
So

la
r I

ns
tru

ct
or

 (2
) F

in
an

ci
al

 A
id

 M
an

ag
er

 (1
) a

nd
 

St
ud

en
t S

up
po

rt 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t (

1)
 

O
ne

 p
en

di
ng

 st
ar

t d
at

e,
 O

ne
 p

en
di

ng
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

ch
ec

k,
 O

ne
 p

en
di

ng
 o

ff
er

 a
nd

  O
ne

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

ad
ve

rti
se

, 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l I
ss

ue
s 

Pe
rs

on
ne

l I
ss

ue
s 

A
dd

re
ss

ed
 o

ne
 su

pe
rv

is
or

’s
 c

on
ce

rn
s o

ne
 st

af
f 

m
em

be
r. 



 

        
Ñia, Oya G-T-Taccui Am Hab E-ju: 

Our Dream Fulfilled 
 

TO:  Tohono O’odham Community College Board of Trustees 

THRU: Paul Robertson, President 

FROM: Sylvia Hendricks, Director of Student Life 

DATE:  March 10, 2023 

SUBJECT: Student Life Staff April 2023 Board Reports 

 
Sylvia Hendricks- Director of Student Life 
  Key Issues/Items addressed in 2023 March 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 
Director of Student 
Life meetings, 
activities & training. 

Meetings and events scheduled for the month of March in Student Life:   
• I’ve attended all Leadership meetings (every other Monday), Admin Meetings 

(weekly Tuesday meeting), O’odham Niok Sessions (every Monday), and 
Himdag Committee Meetings (every other Tuesday) during the month of 
March in regards to the following:  

o Providing updates on Security, Athletics, the Food Program and the 
Residence. 

o Setting up meeting and planning sessions for upcoming events. 
o Areas of concern and planning and updated on events and reminders 

for the remainder and beyond the semester.   
 

• Additional events & meeting during the month of March: 
o Spring Break for TOCC Students- 3/6-10/2023 
o Purchase Give-away Items in Tucson w/Frances- 3/7/2023 
o TOCC BOT Meeting- 3/9/2023 
o TOCC/WCD Community Day Event- 3/10 & 17/2023 
o Native FEWS Planning Meeting- 3/10, 25, & 20/2023 
o TOCC BOT Meeting- 2/9/2023 
o Residence Life Flyer Meeting- 3/15/2023 
o Meeting w/Drew Harris- 3/15/2023 
o Global Meeting Local- 3/29/2023 
o Residence Life Meeting w/Facilities- 3/29/2023 
o Presentation-Revitalization of the Mapuche Lang. & Culture- 3/29 

  
Just a few Highlights for the month of March 2023: 
 I continue working with HR on filing 3 Student Life positions: 

o Assistant Cook-Student Position 



 

 
. 

o Wellness Program Coordinator 
o 1 Security 

 Upcoming event that the Food Program is in preparation for:  
o High School visit from BUSD Alternative & High School Seniors 

 I continue working on Credit Card Bank Statement Reconciliations for 
FY2023 (2022 July-2023 February) Will submit reports for 2023 July-January 
the week of 4/10/2023. 

 I continue to work with Staff on a number of projects they are working on.  
Making sure they have all the resources they need to complete projects. 

o FY2024 Budget worksheets became available early March, I am 
working with Residence Life and Athletic/Wellness personnel on their 
budgets along with requesting a training session with the Dean of 
Finance on the budget planning process.  

o I am also working on the Student Life Budget for FY2024. All 
budgets are due by April 14, 2023 and am scheduled to meet with 
administrators for budget reviews & approvals on 5/3-5/2023 for the 
next level of approval.  

o I continue to work with the Residence Life Coordinator, Anne Miguel 
on issues in regards to residence and processes, along with making 
some changes to the program to improve and evaluate the processes of 
the Residence Program.  

o The Wellness Program continues to offer a number of Wellness events 
for students and staff along with continuing use of the facility by 
students and staff.  

o The Wellness Program is preparing to open up the Apedag Ki: to the 
public soon by sending out flyers on our TOCC Facebook page.  
 

Food Program 
Information      

The Food Program continues to provide delicious and nutritious meals for TOCC 
Students and Staff and in particularly the Dorm students for Breakfast, Lunch and 
Dinner.  . 

The Lead Cook also continues to shop weekly for Food Supplies and provides a 
weekly menu. 

Very positive results on the Meal prepared for the Native FEWS Conference event.  
Due to the large group and preparation for this event, breakfast, lunches and dinner 
were eliminated for our students and staff.  Arrangements were made for our Dorm 
students only.  It has been decided that the Food Program will discontinue preparing 
meals for large outside groups but will continue with assisting with small TOCC 
functions.    

Community relations 
and outside college 
contacts 

Collaboration with other entities have continued to be done both in person and 
virtually as other programs and entities open up in light of Pandemic situation in 
Arizona and the nation.  
 
We continue to collaborate with the different division here at TOCC and have slowly 
begin meeting face to face with the option of joining virtually.  
 



 

Anne Miguel- Residence Life Coordinator 
Key Issues/Items addressed in 2023 March 

 
 
Drew Harris- Athletic/Wellness Manager 
Key Issues/Items addressed in 2023 March 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment  

Current Residents - We currently have 18 registered student residents 
      -     11 Female Residents and 7 male students, 3 females returned home for family        

Emergencies. These students are continuing classes online. 
 

Preparation of physical 
structures 

       -    Minor repairs such as replacement of door knobs, window screens, lights,        
- The main air conditioner/heater leaks were discovered and are in process of 

repair. Facilities is still waiting for parts to complete the repair.  
- IT made upgrades to the dorms connections, 
- Student lounge room is being used by students when quarantine is needed. 

 
Alarm System - Alarm system throughout units needs to be inspected due to continuous 

beeping and “trouble” light on 
 

Residence Life 
Coordinator position 

- Residence Life Coordinator Attended Housing and Residential Life Training 
in Mesa AZ, 

- Several students are making use of resources to improve academics,   
- Participated in several Community Events to recruit students for the resident 

program, 
- Worked on updating promotional flier for Resident Program  
- Students were provided with a presentation on O’odham Blessings and its 

meaning. Additional cleansing of dorms was required and a final cleansing to 
be held in April, 

- Several meetings with the Advisor, Counselor and Retention Coordinator 
provided valuable information in assisting students.  

 
Residence Assistants   - 1 Resident Assistant received Student of the Year Award and attended the 

AIHEC Student Conference for the recognition banquet in Albuquerque New 
Mexico.   

- 2 Art students entered artwork in the exhibition at the AIHEC Student 
Conference.   

- Working on event for end of semester  
- 1 student participated in a Food, Energy, Water Systems (FEWS) Gathering in 

Tucson, AZ 
 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 
Working status a) The Apedag Ki: has now confirmed a full program schedule. For weekly 

events: 
a. Mondays & Fridays are open workouts.  
b. Tuesdays Zumba will be offered, on  
c. Wednesdays Tai Chi will be offered along with Nutrition Ed.  

b) For monthly events: Massage Therapy & Acupuncture will be offered to 
students and staff.  



 

c) The Athletic/Wellness Manager has also inquired and submitted a backhoe and 
tractor request to the Schuk Toak District. The backhoe and tractor will be used 
to clear space for the Apedag Ki:’s Volleyball Court/Parking.  

d) Summer events that are currently being planned are: 
a. Youth Track Meet. The Athletics’ program & the Indian Oasis Middle 

School’s Track & Field club will host a multi competition event.  
b. The Athletics’ Program will also host a Youth Basketball Camp in July.  
c. The Apedag Ki: is working with the HOPP to put on a 100,000 step 

challenge for the community starting in June. Registration will start in 
May.  

d. The Apedag Ki: will be hosting a Mini Summer 2 on 2 Tournament for 
staff and students. The tournament will take place the last week of the 
semester and consist of Basketball Pong, Volleyball, and Badminton.  
 

Coaching and 
Recruiting 

a) One recruit was signed to a LOI in March. The goal/requirement from the 
ACCAC is to have 5 Men and 5 Women on each team. Total as of today for 
next year’s roster is 2 women and 2 men.  

b) The ACCAC 3rd qtr. meeting will took place in March in Mesa.  
c) Off-season workouts have started at the Apedag Ki: on Tuesdays & Thursdays. 
d) Recruitment of an Assistant Coach Cross-Country Coach took place in March 

and a potential candidate has been found. Awaiting 2023-2024 budget proposal 
approval to finalize. 

 
Scheduling a) 2023-2024 schedule will start to be planned for the next season.  

b) The Apedag Ki: Event/Class Schedule has been set and finalized with both 
Weekly & Monthly Events. As described in the working status section of this 
report. 
 

Academics a) The Student Life Coordinator, Athletic/Wellness Manager, and the Cross-
Country Head Coach met to discuss a plan for Academic accountability 
amongst the Student-Athletes. A Study Hall has been discussed for Fridays. 

b) Continuous follow up with runners on classes/credits and class schedule. 
c) Encouraging runners to get involved with programs being shared through 

TOCC email. Internships and summer programs. 
 

Administration a) TOCC continues to recruit for Wellness Program Coordinator position.  
b) Athletic/Wellness Manager has started to process to attain a student intern until 

we find a program coordinator. There are two interested students ready to start 
once approved. 

c) Meetings with consultants to provide programing for the Apedag Ki: has taken 
place. 

d) The Apedag Ki: Event/Class Schedule has been set and finalized with both 
Weekly & Monthly Events. As described in the working status section of this 
report.  

e) Attended multiple meetings regarding the upcoming Commencement.  
 

Wellness a) Working with facilities to address issues with the bathrooms. Athletic/Wellness 
Manager found that there is unblocked visual access to both women and men’s 
bathrooms/ shower. Operation had informed manager and Student Life Director 



 

 
Valentine Lee- Lead Security 
Key Issues/Items addressed in 2023 March 

Student  
Issue/Disciplines  
Incidents reports 
  

a) One report for medical on the 21st  
b) One illegal on campus and was picked by border patrol (17th) 

Temperature Check 
Station 

a) Staff/employee’s and students no longer have to check in daily as long as they 
have the new staff/employees and student badges, which they can obtain from 
the library.  

b) Only visitor’s and vendors have to check in and show proof of vaccination.  
Vendors may take a test at the check in station if they are not vaccinated   

     
Security Staff a) Security is still down a person. We are waiting for a potential candidate to apply 

for the Security position and pass the background check.  
b) We continue to help each other cover all shifts when needed.  
c) We continue to do are rounds here at S-cuk Du`ag campus and check on Wis ag 

kos campus.   
 

  

that a measurement and estimate has been made for a divider to block easy 
visual access.  

b) Recently ordered equipment & supplies: First Aid Kits, jump ropes, and foam 
rollers.  

c) In March, Acupuncture & Massage Therapy were scheduled and took place on 
the 13th and drew in 20 participants. The next Massage therapy is scheduled for 
the 28th.  

d) Massage Therapy has been averaging well over 20 participants each event. 
  

Budget/Fundraising a) The Athletic/Wellness Manager is working on a budget for the rest of the 
2022/2023 budget year. Currently on track.  

b) Athletic/Wellness Manager took a training for Budget Proposals /Justifications 
for the upcoming 2023-2024 fiscal year.  

Outreach/Community 
Service 

a) The cross-country head coach and the Athletic/Wellness Manager have met to 
discuss plans to assist with off-season training for the Cross-Country team. Part 
of the plan is to develop a running club that the runners on the cross-country 
team can participate in and run competitively as unattached from the school. 
Depending on the rules and certain criteria of the NJCAA the TOCC Athletic 
program may or may not be able to assist financially on the new club team’s 
development. More information will be provided on dependent funding source 
for the running club after the 3rd qtr. Athletic Directors meetings in March. 

b) The Athletics’ Program will be participating in the upcoming Field Day event at 
Baboquivari High School.  

c) The Athletic Program will continue to make an effort to connect with the local 
high school’s athletics programs. The purpose is find solutions to lack of local 
O’odham athletes attending and participating in sports and school at TOCC.  

d) The TOCC Athletic program recently meet with the AD of Baboquivari HS. 
 

Issues/Items Actions/Assessment 


	ADP7757.tmp
	Policy Statement
	Reserving College Facilities
	Faculty and Staff Reservations
	Third Party Reservations

	TOCC Support for Facility Use

	ADP1DFF.tmp
	1. Mandatory Vaccination
	2. Health Checks and Masking Requirements
	3. Coronavirus Testing

	ADP7574.tmp
	1. Mandatory Vaccination
	2. Health Checks and Masking Requirements
	3. Coronavirus Testing

	ADP91BF.tmp
	Our Dream Fulfilled

	ADPDE54.tmp
	Employment Vacancy Activity Log
	March 2023
	Vacant Position
	Division

	Interview Scheduled
	No
	Yes
	No
	Yes
	No
	Employment Vacancy Activity Log
	March 2023
	Hourly
	Vacant Position
	Division

	Interview Scheduled
	No
	Yes
	No
	Yes
	No

	ADP8506.tmp
	TOCC EMPLOYEE STATISTICS
	(March 2023)
	FULL TIME POSITIONS
	PART-TIME & TEMP POSITIONS




